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ﬁ\ midst the fog of battle enveloping Irag, few clouds were more poisonous than those created by the Information war, with
4

psy-ops techniques honed in Northermn !reland and elsewhere deployed as frequently as air strikes. NFBIs fully committed
“"Wito using our small resources to encourage resistance in the information war back home, now. The recent inquest into Dr
David Kelly's death, while heavily circumscribed, has nonetheless opened up the spook world to a slight degree, and shown what
vain, evasive and insubstantial creatures they really are. The necessary role petiormed by a magazine like ours is not
glamourous or popular, but essential--and not at all futile. More than ever, to follow Gramsci, occupying the political and moral
high ground in the war of position is our alm.

ong-term NFB readers well know the malign effects of spook intervention in politics, recently questioned from a surprising
L and respected quarter. For 20 years Lobster magazine, edited by Robin Ramsay, has pioneered parapolitical research in -
e the UK, and hie continues to publish regular as clockwork twice a year [see web-site www lobster-magazine.co.uk]. Others
in the fleld owe Lobster.a great deal, as do | for publishing my research and defending me against outrageous personal aftacks.
Lobster's work on the Wilson Plot, the secret state conspiracy to overthrow an elected government, Is exemplary and still fresh.
More recently, Ramsay uncovered New Labour's transatlantic connections. In Lobster 44's editorial. Ramsay remarked that
Lobster’s original "chief focus was information on the intelligence and security services" but "these days such information is
avallable in abundance and | see little point in simple collation”. | agree--there Is little point in 'simple collation', but parapolitical
investigation isn't or shouldn't be collation, but placing individual and agency actions in strategic context. 'Abundantly available'
information, if not appropriately used, might as well be hidden in a locked vault. In these inforfation-conscious times, spocks
do make such available--but in a limited and distorting way. For example Eliza Manningham-Builer's CV, explored in our first
article. " Information about her aristocratic antecedents was available, but until now nobody had looked, or placed such in
perspective, surely the Job of irregular magazines like NFB (or even Lobster).

T ) amsay also claims that "spooks don't seem as important as they did". Wrong. There is an incontrovertible elamentary
=g sense in which spooks are more important today than ever before. In not just Guantanamo Bay, but the UK, individuals
{ | can be arrested, imprisoned without charge and the keys thrown away simply on the unchallenged say-s0 of spooks,
Thereby reverting to a medieval situation obtaining before Habeas Corpus and Magna Carta. And thers should be no doubt that
even those of us on the outside are under Increasing threat--interception of phone calls email and post has doubled under New
Labour from 1,370 in 1996 to 3,427 in 2001. Secret state Interference in social life takes two further distinct but related. forms.
First, as woll as targeting individuals, they engage In infiltration, manipulation, disruption and intermittently direction of so-called
. domestic subversives, now re-classified as terrorist or terrorist-linked to maintain the legal fiction counter-subversion is no more.
Ample evidence of this engagement can be found throughout this issue, whether it be (defeated) attempts to fit up the Wombles,
shocking revelations about the 1999 David Copeland nail-bombings or indeed possible MI5 involvement in Princess Diana's 1997
death. The longest article covers Peter Taylor's three part BBC documentary devoted to counter-subversion (particularly Special
Branch), and amply illustrates spooks are important. As too does the hard fact Spectal Branch numbers have doubled from 1,638
in 1978 to 4,247 in 2002, according to official HMIC figures. A second form of spook interference is vig the media, including
liberal conduits like the Guardian/Observer axis. NFB got stick from Lobster for examining the output, and probing the
allegiances, of Observer Home Affairs editor Martin Bright. | stand by what | wrote, and feel NFB vindicated by an affidavit from
Bright admitting that "most [media] organisations designate a journalist who will deal with each -service....In the case of the
Observer, | deal with MI5". Had Bright revealed this before asking me detalled questions about NFB, I'd have told him which
“bridge to jump off. Nor, | suspect, does Bright routinely alert others he gathers information from. Bright's affidavit justified refusal
“to elaborate further on this relationship" as "this is not possible without identifying the individual ihvolved or jeopardising the
Observer's lines of communication with the Intelligence services® [see Observer web-site Libertywatch campaign dated 21/7/02].
Lines of communication are two way, so | need say no more other than to ask who the accredited links to MI5 MI8 and Special
Branch in other organisations are. '

@ are in for the long haul, and so return to previous stories. While the EU intrudes little this issue {lots next) other than

\ .3\ / in a fascinating disinformation strategy document, Ufology again features, Max Burns describing a chilling operation

/’ 7 against both him and the truth. More old friends (not) David Shayler & Donal Macintyre have recent antics analysed,

to the credit of neither. They and others cynically calculate that because they cannot answer NFB's guestions, the best tactic is

to publicly ignore us. A position that cannot hold for ever, or even long. The fortunes of the British National Party (BNP) are

again reviewed, necessarily so glven their disturbing recent electoral success, We also explore the BNP's relationship to the

secret state—-not as a side issue, but as characteristic of our broad scope. To end on a positive note, the last editorial urged

action on the Copeland case: new information published this issue was provided by brave people who have put themselves on

the line. Now is the time for this and earlier information to be widely disseminated, so those in Special Branch and MI5 who gave
this Nazi low-life license to commit murder are called to account as he has alrgady been. That is important. 15/10/03

Thanks to: Harry Ainsworth, Steve Booth, Duncan Ferguson, Green Anarchisi, Dave Hughes, the Northern Lights, Steve
Patterson, David Pegg, Q (for intelligence, editorial input & operations), Heldi Svenson, the new Technical Department.

Edited & Published By Larry Q'Hara, BM Box 4769, London, WCIN 3XX England
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MAX BURNS: AN INTRODUCTION by Larry Q'Hara '

&N 'ce again, NFB visits Ufology.
. ;a subject we were first drawn to
“wee- by the antics of Agent Hepple,

chronicled in the still available ‘At War
With the Universe' (AWWU), which fully
explores why this area interests the
secret state, This issue, Max reveals
the extreme lengths some in Ufology
have sunk to in order to shut him up
concerning the March 1997 Sheffield
incident. The two most implicated are
Andy Roberts and David Clarke.
Roberts first crossed my path asking for
evidence of Hepple's fascist past,
especially the Church of the Creator.
Such was provided, but Roberts did not
act on it. He subsequently plied me
with rurmours; theluding the assettion
UFQ Magazine editor the late Graham
Birdsall was a spook, Since then, he
and Clarke have gone from strength to
strength. After clambering on Jenny
Randles' back to get accepted within
the respectable end of Ufclogy, she
seems to have outlived her ussefulness.
Presently, they top the greasy pole,
using UFO Magazine and Fortean
Times in partieular to recycle stories
from close military contacts and direct
the research equivalent of steaming
piss onto Ufologists not under control,
Agent Hepple/Matthews is also

involved--but given previous. cock-ups .

only as a minor bit player.

Some critics label Burns a lying drug-
dealer. Amazingly, this includes
Hepple, a Nutzi popping ecstasy tablets
ten years ago (AWWU p.122). Topping
that, Burns was also condemned by
Roberts, a convicted drugs-supplier as
far back as 1976! Unlike Burns, there
is no doubt Roberts was gullty. Burns
rightly contrasts this case with his own
conviction. Is it likely that Roberts
purchased an illegal substance he did
hot like (amphetamine sulphate) so as
to give it away to a third party? Or was
Roberts selling it and other substances
{'dealing") before grassing up his mates
and others who (as contemporary trial
repotts show) merely grew their own?
Does this explain a reduced ‘giving
away' charge? Roberts' drug usage
{even if stopped) would ungusstionably
make him potentially susceptible to
prassure from state agencies.

Ufology denounces government cover-
ups but with the honourable exception
of Magonia magazine practices. self-
censorship: on crucial matiers. NFB
doesn't. AWWU dealt with a classic
agent provocateur, and Max Burns'
plece usefully supplements that text.
He lays bare how disinformation
specialists act to discredit-genuine UFO
research. Reading it, the image springs
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to mind of Clarke, Roberts Hepple and
co. as attack-dogs. Snarling vicious
and unreasoning attacks switched off
and on at will but definitely concerted.

Roberts and Clarke {hereafter R/C)
recently co-authored 'Out Of The
Shadows' (Piatkus 2002), a history of

- the British state's dealings with UFOs

since World War Two. This book
amplifies concerns raised by Burns.
Belief in UFOs is dismissed as modarm
folklore {p.31/213). More importantly.
R/C ridicule ideas of a UFQ cover-up,
on the grounds it "must operate at all
levels of government and the
media....the number of psople who
would have taken part in this cover up
would be vast' (p.4). This caricature,
implying overatching conscious
agreement, is intentionally perverse.
Cover-ups rely far more on a few
people disappearing files, or important
things not being written down, the "need
to know' being paramount. - Hilariously,
R/C claim "nothing motivates Journalists
more than the suggestion that
information of any kind is being
withheld" (p.4). Not only a ludicrous
interpretation of journalistic motivation,
they miss out the process whereby the

-secret state ‘places' stories on and off

journalistic agendas, far more subtle
than crudely applying DA notices. After
deciding to downgrade UFO sightings
the MOD opened up to R/C for this

" book, making it such an agenda item.

Hence, the associated Radio 4
decumentary (25/4/02) and fawning
Observer plug from the distinctly
suspect Paul Harris (5/5/02) to
accompany the book. This was
followed by a Discovery Channel
programme (24/7/02) which R/C filmed
on hitherto secret MOD premises.

R/C's operating theory of knowledge is
pseudo-empiricist, based on official
documents and withess accounts
backing thelr prejudices. Interestingly,
R/C imply those claiming to see UFOs
are logically drawn to the extra-
terrestrial explanation (e.g. p. 27/50).
This downgrades, as intended, the
military hypothesis, which sees most
UFOs as secret terrestrial military craft,
developmental or otherwise. Not until
page 200 of 256 do they mentlon the
military hypothesis, and even then
touch on the psy-ops aspects only. Of
course, R/C would not get top-level
military access without giving credence
to the official perspective UFOs are a
"nuisance" (R/C interview with Nick
Redfern UFQ Magazine June 2002
p.12). R/C frequently boast about co-
operation from the military {p.2/81/254
& Redfern interview p.11/13). That

such help is forthcoming only hecause
Roberts/Clarke ars ‘on side' In terms of
propagating the MOD message they do
not invite readers to consider,
Paradoxically, they admit log books
files and c¢orrespondence are often
systematically destroyed (p.42/143/189
/226/247). In which case, how do R/C
know they have not been significantly
misinformed? How did somebody with
Roberts' criminal past get the positive
vetting clearance to recelve detailed
inside information and interview high-
ranking RAF personnel? Indeed, given
their closeness to the MOD, can we
trust R/C's views on anything? They
avoid searching questions in relation to
themselves, but not MOD employes
and former UFO desk jockey Nick
FPope. While accepting without demur
Pope's opinlons on Impersonating MOD
officials (p.195), he is venomously
attacked for ET beliefs (p.231/246, &
Redfern interview p.12). Pope is, of
course, a rival for the MOD's favours.
Left to themselves, R/C's research Is
laughable. Supposedly, Richard
Tomlinson was ex-MI5 (not MI6), & his
book banned in Britain (p.202). Untrue.
Also, exactly why did SB allow Clarke
access to their 'Special Branch UFQ
files' (UFO Magazine August 2003)?

R/C allegedly approached the MOD as
"professional historians, who simply
wished to document an aspect of Cold
War history" (interview p.12),
Historians worth the name seek to
demystify, uncover genuine documents,
and find out what really happened,
while refining their own theoretical
paradigms. Yet Max Burns shows
Roberts and Clarke wallowing in the
Ufological sewer, a million light years
away from the pfofession of history
(forging Hitler's diaries aside).
Intimidation, lies, disinformation
grassing, forgery and hoaxing: all
standard R/C activities. By their own
admission R/C have hoaxed for three
decades, a revelation yet t6 be
explored in any UFO magazine.
Speaking of hoaxers, | cannot ighore
Matthew Williams criticising R/C,
quoted by Burns. Given his own crop-
circle hoaxing, and record of lying
about Ufology (AWWU p.51-55),
Williams is not best placed to make this
point, His 'Circlemakers' video,
interesting as it is, might impress the
stoned--but not me. Nonse of this
exonerates Roberts and Clarke in the
slightest. Hopefully, once you have
assimilated Burns' devastating accouri,
the connection between R/C's top level
MOD access and their vile tactics to
suppress debate within Ufology will be
obvious. Happy trials!
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The Usual Suspects Anatomy of a Dlsinformatlon Campalgn in Ufology,

| INTRODUCTION

%- attention while the editor was writing
At War With: The Universe' (hereafter
AWWLUY  with

lg- am & Ufoiogist, and came to NFB's

Steve Booth.

Subsequently | wrote to Larry O'Hara

from jail just as that. exposure of .state
asset TIm. Matthews AKA Timothy Mites
Hepple landed on doorsteps late 1999,
This was the first time | had any contact
with O'Hara, contradicting Hepple's
fabricated story we were both involved
in a lunatic smear-campaign against
him. This is untrue, as covered in
AWWU (p 121-22)

This. artlcle is. based on the premise
the state are Interested in Ufology. in
which case:they would have paople on
the inside to’ gather-infermatlon on
groups ‘and-Individuals, - :

WHY would the state be ‘i_ntérested-in
UFO researchiers? For thiree reasons: -

1) Sightings of -Flying  Triangles,
accepted by most within: Ufology as a
real phenomenon may be military, and
anyone Tooking at this technology
almost ¢értainly comes under state
scruting for -obvious reasons.

2) A lot of researchers stake out military
installations in the hope of seeing craft
first-hand. ‘Any might in principle use
the cover of researcher to spy oh
British and American mstallatlons tor
foreign powers.

3) Some believe FT's are extra 2

terrestrial in nature. |f so, there must
be lots of information being covered up
invelving the state anyway.

All of the above would evoke interest
from the intelligence community. Yet
despité forever going on about cover-
ups, X-Flles conspiracies etc. when
evidence of what appears to be state
operations against Ufologists and
Ufology emerges Ostrich Syndrome

takes over and most simply bury their |
heads in the sand. Althcugh many have |

spoken to me off the record about the
modus operandi of certain individuals,
including those named, few will go'on
the. record. Three factors inhibit
Ufologists speaking out publicly:
intimidation tactics, ridicule and lie
manufacture. All three are standard
practice In the Intelligence world, and
for some - ih UK Ufology too.
Coincidarice? Hardly. These facets will
be covered in this article as well as
sofne of the people behaving in this
manner. Hopefully this will encourage
the wall of silence to be breached.

Notes From The Bordexland

by Max Burns

On the night of 24/3/97, wﬁnes_ses saw
a Flying Triangle craft, and.reporis
persist of a pursuing military jet
crashing in the Peak District near
Sheffield. Rescue teams were
scrambled, but nothing was officially
reported as found, That is not the
whole story and [ have been attempting
to draw together diverse strands and
follow up leads in this case since then.

My involvement was no mere paper-

shuffling exercise: that very night
accompanied by witness Emma
Maidenhead | scoured the Moors for
evidence. While our aim was the
search for truth, it is my contention,
and events from then on seem to show
it, other interested parties had different
motives. - Immediately after that first
fateful night, a conscious planned
campalgn of  diversion, . smear,
sabotage, disinformation character-
assassination and entrapment was
launched. I.was, at first: unknowingly,
the principal target of what looks like a
milltary-operation; and. probably was.
S0 extensive, and exemplary, was: this
operation, it -even encompassed fitting
me’up on a-drugs charge:leading to a
jail sentence. Would anybody: go:to
such lengths to stifle:independent
Utological research?.I-think they would,
and. have. Review the evidence below

and:make up your-own mlnd

The main instruments used in this
operation to cover. up the truth about
Sheffield 24/3/97 were not formally
accredited mllltary personnel, but
others whose apparent independence
from the machine | have serlous reason

to doubt. After readinga this -piece youll
understand why. Given.the state. seeks
to intervene in Ufology, the next
question is who are the people used to
do so from inside? This article looks at
some of the.contenders, MNow is the
time to review the evidence regarding
the actions of a few in UK Ufology.
These people | call the ‘Usual

~ Suspects' Andy Roberts David Clarke &

Tim_Heppie/Matthews,. plus bit-players
like Martin Jeffrey. It is about time they
were properly introduced.

Many-things were written about me on
the internet in magazines and local
news papers mainly the Sheffield Star,
Sheffield Star propaganda-was the
work-of (now Dr) David Clarke formetly
of the Star. Clarke a prominent-sceptic
in UK Ufology, is a published author on
various UFO related: subjects ineluding
the 2000 book 'The UFOs That.Never
Were' (hereafter UTNW)-co~authored
with Jenny Randles & Clarke's ¢close
personal friend .of many years Andy
Roberts [1].. Clarke has a doctorate in
mythology. & folklore from Sheffield
Unlversity, ironically. approptiate ‘to: his
fabulous writings, though .not- perhaps
in the way he.intended. Roberts -has
written and co-written a number of
boeks and_articlesion UFOs and the
paranormal in; UFQ-magazine: Forfean

Tfmes-_a'hd 'Q'tHeifS"._ "'Thé:_full"biographies
of Roberts ‘& Clarke (almost) are on
their website www.flylngsaucery.com.

~ As with agent provocateur and Nazi

thug Tim Hepple (now Matthews)
previously, the modus operandi of
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Clarke and Roberts is now subject to
scrutiny. Although the main focus of
this piece is Roberts & Clarke, Jenny
Randles does feature. Unlike Clarke
Roberts and Hepple, Randles is a
genuine. Ufologlst; her ceuvre worthy of
analysis in a future . NFB.
Hepple/Matthews is also in the- frame
for performing eruclal tasks in the
enterprise.  Roberts & Clarke's
admiration for Hepple is best displayed
by these Hepple words featurlng on
their web site:

"You destroy peoples hopes and
dreams, attack their beliefs, bring them
down and use every low tactic at your
disposal” Tim Matthews July 2000 [2] .

The facts are presented below in
broadly chronological but also thematic
order. It is my considered view that
from start to finish this is almost a text-
book case in the lengths to which

~spooks will go to discredit any

Ufological investigation getting too
close to the truth, in which investigators
show themselves to be both genuinely

-That said,

independent and persistent, | do ndt
say what happened in my case applies
to all UFO investigations: but merely is
one containment stratagem available
for use in patticularly sensitive cases.
| trust Ufologists will
recognise at least some of the
behaviour patierns involved. What
follows is eight possible stages in
deralling a UFO investigation. 1t only
reached eight because | persisted: and
no doubt additional stages will be
smbarked upon after this article,

| STAGE 1: SUPPRESSION AT SOURCE--GETTING A FALSE STORY ACCEPTED |

/ho exactly owned the Flying
/  Triangle sighted near

¥/ W, Sheffield (on Howden Moor)
in March 1997 is debatable: either
UK/US military, alien or a foreign
power. Take your pick. Evidence
advanced here concerning the usual
suspects MO is not dependent on any
specific interpretation, but in its own
right points to something important
happening. As | began to collate
evidence, others were also active:
trying to cover up such evidence, and
muddy the trail.

/ v 4

Within three weeks of my investigation
starting, Tim Matthews got in on the
(disinformation) act. The now defunct
Alien Encounters magazine [3]
reported that

"Houses in South Yorkshire were.
rattled by an unexplaiped airborne
explosion on the night. of Mareh- 24th
(1997) and witnesses at Marjorie Hil
claimed to have seen a WFEQ hovering.

over a hill side at the time of the
mysterious detonation. RAF
Tornadoes were despatched to search
for wrackage in case the cause was
an aircraft crash, but nothing was
found. Rumours quickly filtered out
that the explosion was caused by a
Black Triangle crashing, but they were
guashed by Tim Matthews of LUFOS,
who said that nothing had been
reported taking off from BAe Warton,
Suspected home of the Triangle on
the night of the noisy sighting. The
explosion was powerful enough to be
picked up by Edinburgh University's
selsmic unit’. -

I asked Matthews the source of his
information, but got.no proper
response, just routine abuse [4]. Yet
seismic readings  were. not picked up
by Edinburgh University, but three
different stations. The 22.06 selsmic

disturbance was picked- up by .

Haverham patk, Holmfirth and Leeds
Untversny, all-in.the Immediate area of

the explosions. [5]. It seems Hepple
was trying to close the case before any
serlous investigation got moving.

He was not the only one. Within ten
weeks of the incident Clarke (at this
time acting as press officer) wrote a 26
page report for BUFORA (British UFC
Research Association) putting the case
to slesp. According-to associate Andy
Roberts, Clarks proved the FT to be
merely a Bolide meteor or routine

military exercise. As far as Clarke

Roberts and Dr Jacqueline Mitton of
the Royal Astronomical Society were
concerned the case was closed. It has
now been confirmed by Fylingdales
RAF station in Yorkshire there was no
space debris in the atmosphere over
the north of England on the evening of
24/3/97. Which in itself would have
been known almost immediately by the
military and Mitton, however this
disinformation was propagated
unchallenged in Clarke's Jocal media
article and repert for BUFORA.

STAGE 2: UNDERMINING/LYING ABOUT WITNESSES

i FOs That Never Wers. (UTNW)
i contains an |mportant joint
)/ statement
mvestlgatlon "the starting pomt must
be witness testimony, sought out
Immediately--before the- elements of
contamination get in the way" (p,10).
Too true--the only problem being
Roberts Clarke and theltr allies are
themselves key contamination
sources. | am not overstating the
case, as you will see, Allen Encounters
issue 12 featured a wltness teport
{p.42) from Pan Grayson..| supplied
his phone number and these of other
witnesses to Martin. Jeffrey who
claimed to be Investigating the case
independently of Clarke Roberts or
myself. A lie. He passed Grayson's
number to Clarke aftet which his
testimony apparently changed. A
phenomenon Jeffrey knows all about,
Manchester UFQ investigator Stephen

Mera came across Jeffroy very early -

on. As he puts it, Jeffrey "told me he
was firgt on the scene”. Unless he was

~out and about around the Peak district -

Notes From The Borderland\

that in any.

by 22.30 on 24/03/97, that.claim is -
untrue. Mera continues "he claimad to
have seen a crashed UFQ which had
apparently turned the -grass blue in
colour, then suddenly many military
personnel turned up and immeadiately
escorted him away from the site,
apparently not before Martin took
several amazing photographs of the
crashed UFQO and the blus grass,
which he told me he sent to UFQ
Reality magazine. | then telephoned

~Jon King of UFO Reality and Jon knew

nothing of Martin nor any photos" [6].
Mera was not just wise long after the
event,.in 1999 he raised these points
on UFOQO ‘Updates [7]. The close
connection between Jeffrey and Clarke
is Indubltable--they co-wrote a report
on the Sheffield incident [8]. 1 had
early contact with Jetfrey, as [ust
stated, indeed he sold me a version of

“the policé fog, which he has since

denied. If Clarke's real aim was
objective UFO research, how come he
co-wrote a 1999 report with Jeffrey
about Sheffield? The answer is that

nelther Clarke nor Jeffrey, sadly, are
objective researchers.

After being passed his dstails by co-
conspirator Martin Jeffrey, Clarke re-
interviewed Grayson, claiming
Grayson never told me he saw a UFQ
or Triangle that night, and was now
convinced he merely saw the search
and rescue helicopter [9]. This is a
complete turnareund from what he
said In Alfien Encounters, before |
wrote about this case anywhere Dan
Grayson actually. wrote, "Although my
sighting was later than everyone
else's, | know whal | saw was no
plane or helicopter" [10]. After
Roberts & Clarke accused me of
fabricating Grayson's testimony, |
cross referenced this and Roberts
lamely responded “witnesses...change
their minds" [111. - Certainly, but not
proving the unretracted allegation |
lled about Grayson's testimony. The
main point: why did this witness
change.thelr mingd?
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Roberts & Clarke were now turning up
the heat after my article In Alien
Encounters lssue 13 July 1997. Clarke
was Informed by a local hewsagent
about my forthcoming article, and
asked her to direct mé to the Sheffield
Star's Rotherham office 50 yards away.
When | visited, Clarke was rude and
demeaning. | asked for comment on my
article, he merely said it was all wrong.

We agreed to disagree and remained .

cordial for a while. Clark suggested at
that meeting we exchange home phone
numbers with a view to sharing
information. Looks like that was our first
date. | never suspected anything at that
point and just thought he was behaving
like a spoilt child or maybe having a
bad day? | never make snap
judgements about anyone, all should
be allowed time for you to see them for
what they really are.

On a later (March 1998) vislt to Clarke's
Rotherham office, | shared further
research with him and he offered me a
different police log in exchange for the
one | had. 1 agreed. We had a heated
debate and Clarke became very
agitated and defensive when | stated
my evolving view a military |st had
crashed that night. ‘After disappearing
for a goed 15 minutes he'returned. This
time (having received instructions
perhaps?) he was up for a good row,
got very angry and kept télling me |
was wrong. [n the end | left, having
decided something very disturbing was
going on: the outburst seemed
contrived [12]. Clarke then told all and
sundry | had become abusive, not the
other way round. o

Tim Matthews AKA Hepple recorded
my June 1999 BUFORA lecture’ and
forwarded the audio to Clarke. A review
of my lecture was sent’by Clarke to the
BUFOQORA council 09/06/99 and on
11/6/99 Clarke also posted the review
to UFO Updates mailing list, He wrote:

"| obtained special pérmission from the
base commander o access the flight
log for Coningsby earlier this year. The
log clearly shows that four Tornadoes
took off and four returned safely to the
base at 2125 that night following a
routing exercise over the North Sea".

Clarke continues:

"Today | contacted Caroline Hogg, the
base Public Relations Officer who
deals with all inguiries to Coningsby.
Had'the base recelved a letter from one
Max Burns asking to access the log,
and making a clalm about a crashed
afrcraft? ‘Not to my knowledge' she
sald after recovering from laughter.
'‘And | deal.with all members of the
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public who contact the base'. In my
presence she searched all
correspondence logs since 1997 (the
base PRO keeps meticulous records of
all letters received) and the only person
to have contacted the base about the
March 24, 1297, incident was -
surprise, surprise, David Clarke".

This account by Clarke is staggetring,
and clearly points to lying somewhere
along the line. - For a start, the base
flight log | was shown on my visit to
RAF Coningsby 03/09/01 shows only
two aircraft taking off. Then there is the
fact we are supposed to accept the
RAF Coningsby CSO apparently
showed Clarke a list of every contact to
the base regarding 24/03/97. How
exactly could he obtain such co-
operation, if he did so?

Clarke's very public allegation | had
never spoken or written to Caroline
Hogg the Community Service Officer at
RAF Coningsby in Lincolnshire was
also repeated to BUFQRA National
Council [13]. A bare-faced lie. On-my
visit to RAF Coningsby 3/9/01 not only
did | meet Hogg, following up earlier
correspondence and phone calls, she
denied ever having.spoken to or having
any contact with Clarke [14].

Typical of Iles about withesses is
Clarke's interview with RAF Engineer
Jonathan Dagenhart. The latter told me
in a phone-~conversation he freely
agreed to be recorded that on the night
of 24th March 1997, on Snake Pass on
the small viaduct over Ladybower
reservoir just after 11pm the mini bus
he was travelling in was flagged down
by a man stinking of "aviation fuel".
During the Interview Dagenhart
repeated the man’ stunk of aviation fuel
at'least 6 times and even said he would
put mo_ney on it [15]. Yet Clarke
maintains Dagenhart instead told me
he reported the incident to the police
next morning after hearing a plahe had
crashed, and only told them he thought
the_man was behaving "suspiciously".
This is untrue, as the South Yorkshire
police incident log shows. Clarke
continues: "More than-a year later,
when contacted by a UFO Investigator,
he had bagun wotking for the RAF as'a
jet engineer at RAF Cosford and was
able'to claim that the 'diesel' he smelled
that night resembled the aviation fusl
he was familiaf with at air bases" [16].
Completely different from the audio
interview | conducted a weék earlier.

this

Matthew Williams made’

observation:

"Another interesting fact i1s how all
Max's witnesses changed their stories

after you and Andy R. got to them, You
then made big claims about how you
could show that Max Burns had lied
about their witness testimonies and that
the witnesses were claiming their words
had been twisted. However the truth of
the situation, as you well know, is that
Max Bums played a tape recording of
one witness who states that he was
happy to allow Max to use his nams,
details of his statement and claimed
that the man he encountered stank of
aviation fuel. After you got to the
withess the story changes to the
withess having not given permission to
Max to talk about his case and Max had
twisted his words. Your eyes it up
when you tried to use this agairist Max
but sadly you have been put back in
your seat because Max then produced
the audio taped recording of this mans
voice" [17].

Roy Hale who attended my lecture
commented:

"Everyone at the Max Burns Lecture
clearly heard Mr Dagenhart express to
Max his position and the clarity of his
statenient. If Clarke & Roberts are
stating that Mr Dagenhart did not say
the things he did, how do they explain
the taped phone call between Max and
Mr Dagenhart? Concerning the
interview which was given by Mr
Dagenhart to Clarke & Roberts were
these interviews taped so we can hear
their method of guestioning? This
would be interesting to many
researchers simply because they are
stating that the - withess
withdrew/denled what Max played
{audio tape) at the lecture" {18].

Rebecca Jackson said regarding
Dagenhart:
"| was with Max at the time he spoke to
and recorded the Jonathon Dagenhart
interview. | know it is a true piece of
evidence as | was listening fo the
conversation. | was also there when a
very frightened Mr Dagenhart changed
his story after being pressured" [19],

Clarke had been making noises to
BUFORA Nationhal Councll and anyone
who would listen that | was using
Dagenhart's testimony without
permission, however | had his
permission as clearly stated during the
interview. This was purely a ruse to
stop such MAJOR TESTIMONY being
included in my research. After all | was
claiming a jet had gone down an hour
before Dagenhart encountered the man
on the viaduct stinking of aviation fusl.
Which as we all know is used in jet
alrcraft.
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STAGE 3: ATTACKING UFO RESEARCH DIRECTLY ' '

larke anhd Roberts only quote
.My early writings on the case,

#¢ including in their book UTNW.,
This was deliberately intended to
caricature my position, and thus stifle
reasohed debate. Not ONCE did
Roberts/Clarke contact me to discuss
my up to date findings before
completing UTNW. A pity, since of the
many weapons in their arsénal, the
one legitimate one is discussion of my
research, Though their treatment of it
fell well outside the bounds of
accepted discourse.

Clarke stated "the theoty that the
mystery man soaked in fuel was
actually a RAF or NATQ pilot clsarly
stretches credibility to its limit. Nick
Pope former head of the MOD
department at Whitehall which deals
with UFOs...now a successful author
of popular books on the subject found
this claim particularly hard to swallow.
He said 'l think its ridicuious to suggest
that this has anything.to do with the
RAF. On the basis that a pilot from a
downed jet would always stay at the
crash site waiting for the Inevitable
military search and restue operation'.
Pope commented on the sheer
implausibility of the claims made by
those who believed a jet had crashed.
He said, 'if an RAF alrcraft had really
crashed what ever the circumstances It
would have been virtually impossible
to implement & successful cover up'.

He went on to say, 'There would
almost inevitably been a fire and in
those circumstances the. emergency
services and members of the publi¢
would have located the crash site very
quickly' [20].

While Nick Pope Is no expert on
crashes in the Peak District or
anywhere else, the Air Accidents
Investigation Branch (AAIB) based at
Farnborough certainly are. On 11/6/93
a Hawker Hunter jet crashed in the

Peak District, The pilot was 46 year ofd
Wallace Cubiit; Clarke referred 1o this
crash within two days of the 1997
incident, using it as evidence to stifle
questions about the Sheffield case
[21]. Significantly, Clarke fails to
mention the 1993 crash site
parameters. Given Clarke and co say

- a jet could not have crashed on

24/3/97 without belng found dus to the
likelihood of wide spread wreckage we
now look at the AAIB crash report for
Cubitt's jet: '

"Impact parameters. The aircraft had
crashed some 1,500 feet above mean
sea level on a remote area of open
mootland, the soft surface of which
was formad by a heather coveraed layer
of peat estimated to be up to 50ft in
depth. The point of impact had been
amongst ‘several natural water
drainage gullies. The aircraft had
struck the ground in a nose and left
wing low altitude both estimated at
between 45 and 50 degrees below the
horizon. The speed of impact was
extremely high estimated at above
450kt. Largely due to this high speed
and the soft and deep nature of the
surface most of the aircraft wreckage
penetrated the peat to a great depth
and formed a roughly circular crater
some 50ft in diameter. Shortly after the
impact this crater filled with water to. a
depth .of ‘approximately 8 feet, the
natural water surface being several
feet below the undisturbed ground
level. A Jarge quantity of peat material
together with some Items of wreckage,
were efected from the crater, forming a
raised lip around the hole, in addition
to being scattered locally in all
directions...Recovery of the wreckage
was severely hampered by the nature
of the surface, the location and access
to the site, which was approximately
2.5 miles from the nearest suitable
road. After several days, during which
the crater was drained as far as

practicable, it became apparent no
major parts of the aircraft would be
accessible without deployment of
significant resources. it was thus
agreed amongst the authorities
involved that.the site would be cleared
of all visible and accessible items
associated with the aircraft and to
leave the majority of the wreckage
buried" [22].

This case is. relevant because,
cruclally, it .shows a jet could crash
and easily not be found, and
furthermore could. also be concealed
from the public. As Clarke included
information about the 1993 Gubitt
crash in his Sheffield Star piece
(26/3/97) he must be fully aware of the
crash circumstances. In which case,
why be adamant a jet could never
crash and not be found, equally why
claim such an event couldn't be
concealed? The circumstances from
the 1993 Cubitt Hawker Hunter Jet
erash clearly support my findings, or at
least the possibility they may be true.

Ancther area of dispute is conflicting
reports about the activities of Mike

‘France's ‘mountain search and rescue

team that March night in 1997. On
both Updates maliing list and in UTNW
Clarke has maintained there was "a
thorough search which was able to
rule out any chance of overlookmg a
crash site" [23]. Yet a t_horough
search-was not conducted. Solid
evidence here is search team leadesr
Mike France's comments to another
Sheffield Star reporter Gail Robinson.

She wrote "Mountain rescue team

leader Mike France says simply: 'the
40 square miles being searched
consists of many valleys and massive
boggy areas. It's very very hard worl,
very slow going and it could take
weeks to completely cover the entire
area' [24].
own reported interview with Francev

Contradicting Clarke's

| "~ STAGE 4: ATTACKING THE UFO RESEARCHER DIRECTLY

|

' The Armchair Ufologist hit UK
. Ufclogy like a malodorous parasite.
Fronted by Roberts the whole thing is a
dig at anyone in UK Ufology Roberts
(or those behind him) thinks should get
it. | became, very popular among some
people after Roberts did his Max
Clifford (publicity) thing for me,
However [t also (as intended) damaged
me with others | didn't know. Thts
publication's main purpose was, to
exercise mahgn control over peéople.
Those who feared the same shide
treatment ‘as ‘myself and others
targeted in its vicious outpourings fell

Ig h-August 1997, interet smearsheet
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Into_line. This. has allowed Roberts &
Clarke to say pretty much anything
about anyone without proper rebuttal, |
would not fall into ling and this created
a problem for International Rescue.
Many such as.Nick Redfern have
chosen the easy option. Fair.enough.
Not my choice, ever [25]. Others, such
as Harry Harris, Margaret Fry, Miles
Johnson and even Nick Pope to some
extent, find it prudent to not always
speak thelr mind to Roberts and Clarke.

Roberts Clarke & Randles wrote in
UTNW "We do not. single out
Individuals: or greups for criticism or

fnfer  that they are universally
incompetent’ (p,11). This'is simply not
true as you will see by quoted extracts
from voluminous Internet postings and
other publications Roberts and Clarke
are invelved in. Indeed these lofty
sentiments only lasted for 30 more

pages of that book. Qn p.41 of UTNW

Clarke wrote: "The [Sheffield] case
may never have been transfotmed
from a mundane hunt for a crashed
aircraft to a UFO cover up weres it not
for one person...entirely responsible for
the promotion of the myth. (Max
Burns)'.. Thus confirming, from the
horse's mouth, how my research was
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an obstacte to those wanting to kick the
Sheffield case into the long grass.
Furthermore, if nothing untoward
occurred that March night in 1997, why
did Clarke complete an in-depth 26
page BUFORA report before anybody
else, including me, had written a word
on the case, especially as he claimed
no UFQ activity had occurred?

In terms of my own background, | was.

40 in 2002 and prior to imprisonment
{on which more below) had a
successful career as a DJ. | have
personally been involved in opening
over £30 million worth of new
developments and won a number of
leisure industry awards during 18 years
in the business.

To fully understand my later legal
difficulties, it is necessary to focus on
an earlier event, whose significance |
did not fully understand at the time. In
August 1997 BUFORA held its annual
conference, in Sheffield. Clarke &
Roberts attended along with Hepple
and Mike Wootten. | spoke with them
briefly about the Sheffield case and
then parted company. That day, and
shortly after the conference, Roberts
Clarke and company started claiming to
anyone who would listen in private
pamphlets, email and in person that |
had boasted about bribing a witness in
the case with cannabis, and all their
partners were willing to give statements
to that effect. In July 1999 Roberts
wrote on UFO Updates "Actually Max
we're stating it, not alleging it. For the
simple reason the conversation took
place and Max did in fact state clearly
that he had bribed a ‘traveller' (hippy
who lives in an old bus for our US
readers) with marijuana to get him to
relate his UFO sighting" [26]. A year
earlier Roberts claimed | had admitted
selling a "witness into the case

cannabis to get him to tell me his story".

[27]. Selling and bribing: two different
claims about the same witness--
standard Roberts lying. Firstly | neither
bribed this witness with ¢annabis, or
ever claimed such. Richard Conway the
main conference organiser was
supposedly present during the alleged
cohversation but has confirmed in
writing 'l never heard Max Burns make
any such claims while in the company
of Andy Roberts, David Clarke, Tim
Matthews or Mike Wootten and their
partners at the 1997 BUFORA
conference" [28]. Second, | never said
this witness saw a UFO. Rather, he told
me an RAF friend in Lincelnshire
reported they lost a military jet in the
Peak District on the night in guestion
despite publicly denying anything
happened. He had been told the RAF
had found no wreckage or the plane
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[29]. At the tims, | merely treated this
bogus claim by Roberts and Clarke as
sour grapes, but was soon to find out
different. In retrospect, them spreading
such specific drug-related lies about me
at this very time was probably not
accidental. In other words, knowingly or
unknowingly, they were spinning a line
of character assassination soon after
given practical form by the state's dirty
tricks department. Goincidence? | think
not. See if you agree.

In October 1997 while a passenger in a
car with two women, Susan Bradley
(herself a police drugs target) and
Louise Goodison, the car was pulled up
by police. Goodison | hardly knew, |
was a friend of the other's boyfriend.
Bradley was the object of a regional
drug task force police surveillance,
code named 'Operation Morph'. We
ware all arrested and later charged in
connection with drugs. | pleaded not
guilty, The day of tria! Bradley pleaded
guilty to a charge allowing her to go
free, and charges against Goodison
ware dropped. | was then the only
person to stand trial, Bradley &
Goodison now giving evidence for the
crown. After a 7 day trial in September
1999 | was found guilty by a 10-2
majority verdict, and sentenced to 30
months in fail of which 1 served half. At

Roberts later boasted of illegally
recording our September 1998 pﬁone
conversations, and playing them to a
works  colleague, who gave
psychological comments based on
information Roberts supplied [30].
Obviously such 'background' would be
defamatory, based. on previous altacks
against myself. He used this alleged
resulting 'diagnosis’ as a baslis for him,
Clarke and (bizarrely) proven
psychopath agent Hepple telling pecple
| was a |lunatic paranoid. Clarke even
referred to me in the same sentence as
Osama Bin Laden while trying to
prevent me speaking to a BUFORA
meeting in December 2001. Roberls
utilises questienable {and possibly
fabricated, certainly unethical} medical
opinion derived from somebody who
has never met me. Contrast this with a
letter from somebody who has: my
family Doctor. "To whom it may
concern. This letter is to confirm that
the above patient of ours has never had
or been treated for any form of
Psychiatric illness, either in the past or
currently and is receliving no prescribed
medication. | hope the above is helpful
to you. Yours sincerely Dr K G Bratt."
(private letter 29/11/01). It is standard
intelligence world practice to label
people you are trying to discredit. the

THE AUTHOR (2nd LEFT) AND SOME FRIE

present 1 am in the process (with new
legal representation) of appealing
against this conviction. As the appeal is
ongoing | am not in a_legal positicn to
make extensive comment, nor would |
want to.

Those who know me well are certain |
was not and have never been a drug
dealer. Some will be undecided, but
others in UK Ufology had me tried and
guilty before a trial date was even set,
indeed (as seen above) before | was
even charged. For me it's simple: | was
not guilty, but even if you believe me
guilty have served my debt to society
and should be allowed to carry on with
liferincluding research into UFOs.

way the usual suspects do. "

In March 1998 | again visited Clarke’s
office in Rotherham. I supplied him
with my new address and telephone
number in Nottingham, so Clarke could
post a relevant log. One week later my
phone rang and a voice asked if | was
Max Burns, then hung up. | feit this was
strange and soon found out why. Naxt
morning police arrested me over
council tax arrears. | was hauled off
before Rotherham magistrates. | now
know Clarke supplied my details to
Rotherham council. Clarke admitted, In
a previous post t0 UFO Updates
malling list having been contacted by
the councll, asking about my
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whereabouts? The game was up when
I informed Updates mailing list that the
arresting officer had shown me a copy
of Clarke's fax to Rotherham council,
then forwarded to the police in West
Bridgford where | was then fiving. The
burning question: how would the
council know to ask Clarke about me in
the first place?

My arrest on drugs charges was
skilfully used even before the 1999
conviction. The prime aims were to stop
me speaking about the Sheffield
investigation on any pubiic platform,
appearing on TV, and prevent
magazine/newspaper editors running
my sfory. The intent was to destroy my
reputation and thereby investigation
into the Sheffield incident. It was a
pretext for censorship. Details of the
entire court case and trial will be
available after | have sxhausted all
avenues of appeal to try and have my
conviction overturned.

Astoundingly, and certainly relevant, Dr
Larry O'Hara (NFB editor) tipped me off
that Roberts himself has a drugs
conviction, and suggested | enter into
correspondence to see what Roberts
would, and wouldn't, reveal. After it
became clear | was onto it, Roberts
eventually admitted this. His response
is of interast "if I'm going to be written
about I would at least like the "facts' to
be correct”. Both Roberts and Clarke

can rest secure in the knowledge | have -

made sure the facts in this article are
correct. A procedura they flouted while
reperting on my legal situation: in
general and Sheffield research in
particular for their book 'UTNW.
Roberis went on to say: "l answered
several questions a couple of months

ago...but If there is anything else I'd be

pleased to give you the. facts rather

than let speculation creep in" [31]. No - |

doubt Roberts will claim he freely
volunteerad Information | wouldn't know
otherwise. A lis, but predictable

TWENTY-FOUR IN COURT: Drug
offences case 'Tip Of The Iceb_ercn'
Police. ' o

"A Cleckheaton man asked for, and
got, a suspended prison sentence
when he was one of 24 people facing a
combined total of 55 drug offences at
an all day special court in Dewsbury-on
Friday". [Also] "dealt with [was] Andrew
Jonathan Robetts aged 20 of Hightown
View, Hightown, Liversidge" He and a
co-defendant "both pleaded guiity.
Roberts admitted being in possession
of amphetamine sulphate. unlawfully
supplying amphetamine sulphate and
being in possession of cannabis resin.
The article goes on "The prosecution
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sald Roberts had said ‘It Is in
everyone's Interest for you to come
down here and sort it out'. In a
statement Roberts said he had started
about four years ago (aged 16). He and
Walker had gone to a public house In
Bradford where they had bought some
from someone called Dave. He
normally smoked in the fields near

_where he lived. He said that they had

bought some 'speed' ( amphetamine. )
in Bradford and taken it to a cottage at
Roberttown. | won't waste my money
on 'speed again' he had said. Roberts
said he was a single man with no
previous convictions, and a good home
background. He had experimented with
the drug. Both his clients were released
on bail* [32].

This all led to a three months prison
sentence suspended for two years and
fines totalling £100 for Roberts [33].
How did this case come to court yoti
might ask, what slip up did ultra-cool
alr-guitarist Andy Roberts make? The
truth is prosaic, and disturbing, "Mr JS
Robertson, prosecuting told the court,
Roberts had walked into the police
station of his own accord saying that It
‘was In everyone's interest'. Roberts

mitigation, Mr Simon Alexander,
commented that it was not his clients
habit to use amphetamine and that
when he had tried it, had been revolted
by it"{34].

Roberts has stated his 1976 drug
convictieh is common knowledge, as
too continued: use .of drugs since then
[356]. Let's look furthsr at Roberts'
stance. on drugs.

Roberts wrote: "As for my liking for -
various substances, as you say.it's no
secret now or then", going on "where
we differ Max is I'm praepared to be
totally up front about what | do. |1 can't
remember if it says so in the articles
from 76 but | do recall telling the
magistrates that | fully supported an
indlviduals right to use such substances
they choose, if and when they want to
get high. 1 have always, whoever asked
me, stuck to that belief and will do so.
Mowever, I don't condone dealing
because pecple get ripped off. Simple
as that" [36].

My respohse is as follows. First, |
served 15 months jail for something |
was not guilty of. Second | spent 12

ST Ty

THUNDERBIRDS. ARE GO? INTERNATIONAL RESCUE OPERATIVES
ROBERTS (LEFT) & CLARKE (RIGHT) GET READY TO RUMBLE

told police officers that he usually went
to the pub with Lindsey Howard Walker
of Brighouse ( who also appeared
before the court In a separate hearing ),
and bought the grass from either a
youth called Dave or anothet, sald Mr
Robertson. 'GIVEN AWAY' On one
occasion it was alleged that Roberts
and Walker had purchased some
amphetamine sulphate. it was further
alleged this was later given to man
called Chris Bland of Hightown. When
asked by the police Roberts had
admitted that they had all tried it. In

months of sentence on a drug free wing
and signed the relevant documents
which gave-prison the right to test me
for drugs on any occasion day or night.
[ was tested on at lsast 30 occasions in
12 months and never ONCE tested
positive for any lilegal drug. Something
which | suspect could not be said for
Roberts in the same time frame. Third,
since release from jail 1 have bhesen
working In a place which drug-tests all
employees-and has a zero tolerance
policy. | have passed all drug fests
there also. So Roberts' comment
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"where we differ.Max.is that I'm
prepared to be. totally: up-frent. about
what | do"is wlthout foundation:: Whila |
was Inltlally loath. to’ mentron ‘Robers

continued use of drugs throughout adult
life, it Is reasonableé to-ask how much
constant usage has affected his: erifical
faculties with-regard to Ufeloglcal

debate, ‘I den't care what Roberts does
or'does. not do; but if It Interferas with
ny research or:his- Judgement comment
Is hecessary. :

T . oTAGEb: SUPPRESSING THEWMESSAGE

At the begrnnrng of 1998 1 was booked
to addross BUFORA’'s AGM, which
ook place 2/6/98. Clarke Roberts and
company started a behind the scenes
campalgn to stop me presenting my
findings. Clarke called then-BUFORA
Chairman Steve Gamble "ordering
him | should not be allowed to speak"
[37]. ORDERED? With what oron
whose authority was Clarke (then
meraly BUFORA press officer) making
demands of BUFORA's Chairman? A
continued flotilla of emails & phone
calls to various council members from
the 'Usual Suspects' resulted in
Gamble calling me at home the night
befora the lecture at 5.20pm to tell me
"the lecture-is not going ahead".
Judith Jaafar commented recently that
Gamble- -found ' the incessant
intimidatory pressure from Roberts
and Clarke -over thjs so distressing
that:soon after he resigned.from
BUFORA National Council :and. to-this
day is not publicly invélved In.#ology
on & natichal level (38]. ‘The prime
reason BUFORA. .cancelled.: me
speaking was Clarke's-lig | did-not
have Dagenhart's-permission to-use
his-testimony. Because of BUFORA's
strict confidentiality rules, a majority. of
BUFORA Nationa}. Council -were
swayed by this argument. My audio
intetview of Dagenhart,. reproduced:in
the 'Sheffield Incident' video, shows
that once again Clarke had Iled

Roberts wrote about thls "Fortunately
Max has been prevented from
speaking at this event, No.doubt
allegations of cover-up, -censorship
and repression will follow. In fact. we
are all for Max putting his: case across
in public. We *want* It to -happen",
Another complete llg. . They have
always wanted to deny me a public
platform at all costs. Roberts
continued: "But we want it to be a
'two-sided' debate involving the
principal Investigator, Dave Clarke, so
that the. audience see *poth* sides of
the coin. Unfortunately Max cannot
accept this and has since thrown his
teddy out of the pram®, [38].

In reality Clarke has refused to debate
this case with me on.a BUFORA

. investigation

platform on at least two separate
occasions and onge said he would
have to take legal advice before
proceeding. Clarke & Roberts even

© refused Maithew Willlams 1998 offer

to hold the debate at our expense at a
location on their doorstep.

On . 7/5/98 | met Phil Taylor News of
the World features editor at his
Londen office to talk about my
into the Sheffisld
Incident. | was there from 10.30am,
-and our discussions were going well.
At 1.00pm Clarke called the News of
the World and asked for Phil Taylor by
name, informing him 1 am a drug
dealing liar and was making the whole
thing up. This hefore any trial toek
place. There is also the issue of how
Clarke: knew who 1 was with, when,
and. -what - fer? .. booked' my
appointment  to: 'see Taylor on
‘Saturday 5th-May; two days-earlier,
and fold no-one.: How: did the usual
suspects-find out? By now |.think you'll
only nesd one guess. Roberts was
sensitive-on:this'point; and even asked
for-evidence. Clarke had done this,
‘when he mustsurely have known [40].
Unfortunately: for him, Ciarke had
sarlier ‘admitted contaéting: the
newspaper,: though not how he: knew
to do so. Clarke wrote "if the end aven
the News of the World failed to believe
Max's far-fetched tale. He's: heing
paranoid once agaity if-he really’thinks:

.a News of the World joumalist would’

allow me: toorder-him notto: run a
story, They did not run the story
because il-appraised them of the
FACTS; that's all,: -pldin- and simple"
[41].- The News-of-the World wete
running the stery right-up:to Friday
morning before publication on: Sunday.
How did Clarke know | was there?

Dave Gilham of the Cornwall UFQ.
group was (unsuccessfully)-pressured
by Tim Hepple state asset to prevent
me speaking there 13/9/01. | was also
booked to appear on a March 1998
Central Weekend Television show to
debate Ufology..At the.last minute i
was cancelled, though Roberts Clarke
and Hepple appeared. Roberts
emailed. me to boast the TV company

‘had been mformed | was a- drug
-dealer; before: any frial-took place

Roberts & the others had suppoeedly
saved me the embarrassment of baing
on TV. The same usual-suspects who
had been telling all:and:sundry: | was &
drug dealer now claimed they did it for
mel In reality they.were: deeperate to

.deny me a public platform;. -

Many In UK Ufology were E|n:oreere'l:ngiy
concerned about the 'Ufology Wars',
Immense pressure was applied behind
the scenes by Roberts Clarke &
Hepple/Matthews to whip into fine
groups, individuals, conference
organisers and magazine, edrtore

When I'was again booked to addrees
BUFORA on 5/6/99 the campalgn o
get me barred was reactivated by the
usual stispects. This time they falled
ds new lecture organiser Malcolm
Robrnsoh ‘with BUFORA Ceunorl
support wae in ho mood to be bullled

Roberts- has admitted "it is common
knowledge regarding my liking faor
various substances" [42], Are-his co-
authers Jenny Randiés and David
‘Clarke, ‘this last a friend. for over 20
years, aware of his recreatlohal
activlties i this area? A reasonable
assumption. 1'wrote 1o Jenny Randles
asking for het-opinionion this and
related matters [43]. Randles chose
ot to-reply... This should not be taken
‘as disinterest in:the ‘drfug convictions of
everybody In-Ufalogy. Randles refused
toi.publicise: my  December 2001
BUFQORA:lecture onthe BUFORA
WFOGALL line. Supposedly,. she-could
not -in :good conseience ‘'support
allowlhg a convicted criminal to speak.
Yet shie has ho problem ‘writing: books
‘with ‘one. Work that one out: "“More
dope cake, Vicar? - T

s

.Clarke one of Floberte olesest friends,
is. preeumebly privy .to "common .
knowledge" about Roberfs' partaking
of illegal substances. Nonethéless, he
also tried to have my last BUFORA
lecture stopped on the same grounds
as Randles. :.Clarke; has always
refused to debate this case and.lies
about every conversation we have
ever had, so no shock there.

[STAGE 6: INTIMIDATING & ISOLATING THOSE WHO MIGHT LISTEN TO THE MESSA:GE

\ prime example of this is Nick
' Redfern author of-'A-Covert
Agenda and other books on the
eubjeot He is now very friendly with
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Hoberts subeequent to Rober‘rs
viciously criticising his interpretation of
the Berwyn Mountains UFO case in
the: Armcharr Ufor'ogrst Indeed,

Hedfern has just co~ authored one. book
with Roberts for-the US market.on
'Strange Secrets: Real Government
Files on the Unknown', and-ls: soon.to
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co-author a book with- him called
(according to-Raoberts) ‘The Definitive
Guide o The Berwyn UFO Case!.

-Ftoberts continually sent me offensi\re

emails untll | blocked his address, and
then got co-worker Clarke to forward
such. | wasn't:interested. as: everything
he had to say was negative. Mark Bell

of WUFOG receivad a private email -

from Clarke;.demanding to know why
he was supportmg my- research

[ also recaived one mall from Tim
Matthews AKA Timethy -Miles Hepple
informing me. "Max you are all on your
own with this'. This whole thing had a

pattern: organised and deliberate. Tim
Matthews/Hepple:also warned: Matthew
Willlams to 'stay out of it'. Williams later
wrote :after watching. the situation
develop since March 1997; - -

"You seem incapable of keeping it ‘un-
personal' which. is why behind the
scenes | have.now joined [n.the little
'war' going on: Not to defend the
Sheffield. case, not even to defend Max
Burns, but instead to defend anyone
who should corme underthe massive
attacks you and Andy Roberts make

against them. If :somebody disagrees

with you, god help them, that is all | can
say. This has been noticed... by many

-people, not Just myself* [44].

:Thls srtuatton as. mtended made many
In UK Ufelegy fall into line, which

assisted Clarke and Roberts quest to
contrel-Ufology and the Ufological
debate. . was belng censored at.every
turn, misquoted, statements.| ‘made

-wors altered and: lies-fabricated about
‘me-and my research.-by this small but

powerful-group-of Individuals. Not
evarybody fell in line~ Vice-President
of Bufera. Lionel -Beer heard my
Cornwall legture of 13/9/01 and
informed:- Ma|oolm Hoblnson he was

STAGE 7: HOAXING TO ORDERS

|mpressed [45]. .

'y June 1999 lecture was
booked that February and on
i1 March 20th | received an email
from somebody calling themselves
BLUE HARE claiming to have explicit
detalls conoernlng the crash. of a
Tornado jet in the Peak District
24/3/97. | got. several more emails
from BLUE. HARE: ‘and arrangements
were made to meet this individual - whe
clarmed to be an ex-forces man
present on 24/3/97 as part of the rapid
response team-with a brief:to. seeurs
the ared, | discussed this tale with.a
‘number of people In. UK Ufalogy:
Malcolm .Robinson, Judith Jaafar,
Matthew: Williams .Omar ‘Fewler ahd
Richard: Conway-among others, We: all
agreed-this.was.an_almosticertaln

-hoax. However.one feature- of tfigorous

research is:if .you: fall to follew up -all
leads: you -may miss something vital.-l
decided. to -attend: the arranged
rendezvous, BLUE HARE was a no
show. Two days before my lecture
BLUE HARE again posted me saying
"It:is" Imperative that the truth comes
-out-soon’. Qhviously ah enticement to
reveal Information supplied by the
HARE at my. lecture two- days ‘later. |
did. not use It, as this information was
notvarified, and in my considered view
bogus. Tim Matthews/ Hepple. turned
up at the lecture, he apparently got up
at 6.00am to be thére, tape récorder In
hand walting for-me. to regurgitate
BLUE HARE data for posterity. To
Hepple's evident disappointment | did
not -reveal or refer to-any part of the
BLUE HARE disinformation, At this
stage, all BLUE HARE contacts had
heen privaté, nothing was in the-public
domain, WIthin four days of the
lecture, after Hepple supplied an audio

‘copy, Glarke: nonétheloss seént a-

charactetistically Inaccurate. critique. of
My presentation'to -BUFQRA National
Coundll as alfeady'mentioned, also
posting a copy to UFO Updates
malling listi == - A

No Ees F:éom

The BLUE HARE game plan was to
come forward after | released hogus
information as fact and thereby -discradit
my investigation into the Sheffield case.
When .that failed, the. originators
released the disinformation insuch:ia
way as to look llke. they had pulled -off
some sort of ‘intelligence: ¢oup. The
only thing it actually-proved:is. | verify
facts before-using them--not the
impression disinformers. sought. to
convey. The- title of the: post
announcing:BLUE:HARE's debut.on.the
UFO: Updates -:malling...list was
outrageous to-say the Jeast 'Max ' Burns

Hoax Exposed!: ‘Considering my onfy
involvemeit in this-heax-was resisting-
ity rather: rich.:: . This: was ' last diteh
attempt :to. close me down: and

contaminate my. research’ by confusing
FACT with FICTION. The: very thing
Roberts -and-Clatke Have accused me
of throughout my Investigation.. When
the attempted: BLUE: HARE hoax
landed -on the UFQ Updales.-mailing list
inJune 1999 Roberts wrote of it

"You ) got to Iaugh and admlre at the
gall of whoever was:behind. this Hoax
(which takes several readings before

_the full ramifications sink in).’ Ne doubt

there will-now-be.a flurry of ‘outraged'
decent Ufologists who are-appalled-at

such .a hoax [attempted hoax: Max

Burns] being perpetrated on the 'UFO
community'. “They will be wrong. There
is a lorg tradition of hoaxing within
Ufology-and assoclated subjects; and
careful hoax experiments cah only be
helpful" [helpful to whom? MB]
"However unpalatable this may seem It
Is true. The Burn$ hoax s just one in a
long line of instructlvé exercises which
we" ighore at ‘our peril" Roberts

continuad. "As the hoaxer/s say: ‘caveat.

loctor' (surely related to Hannibal Lector
judiging by the way- Burns. was - cheWed
up and spat outl)“ [46] C .

The phrase 'Burns hoax is highly
srgnlflcant It subtly |mplles not just that

The Borc!erl and -

I was an lntended (and perhaps
successful?) vietim, but - (subliminally)
that | may even have been involved,
After all, many in Ufology only sean
the titles of internet postingsd, and
soimetimes don't read, naver mind
exhaustively analyse, the contents.
One good reason why the 'Usual
Suspects! have got away with what
they: have to date. ‘When |- publicly
revealed the truth of my dealings with
BLUE HARE {AKA Roberts Clarke and
troops as: we: shall sea) [47] ‘Roberts
Qquickly: responded. ‘He wrote :"Firstly,
most: of :what Max.-says is based:in
some: truthi. But: note the.words' 'most'

‘and'some'; Secondly, most.6f :what

Max says ls opefr 1o interpretation-and

his:particular brand of paranold 'spin

doctoring!, To-reply-to: each: and: avery
tedious: allegation would be:tlme
consuming:and-bering” [48]. - The fact
is if my post-had been:wrong Reberts
would have béen on It straight away,
To felgn a brush: off rathet than
provide & proper answeris a standard
tactic for the 'Usual Suspeots' '

Blue Hares message to-UFO Updates
was = certdlnly ‘eye-catching.
ATTENTION A MESSAGE FROM
GENIUS LOKI FOLLOWS ' '1b_
"We are a group of’ people, active 1n
UFO hoaxing sihce the mid 80s, going

-under the ‘collective name of -Gs‘ni_us

Loki. "We belleve it ‘are ‘unable to
determine that a case'is hodked or'not
then they shotild stick to watehing sel:
fi:- Stupidity withth Wfologyhas reactied
new peaks of intansity during:the 1dst
two years The latest ex’ampie is how
the " *"‘go-Galled Sheffield
Incident/Howden Moors UFQ Crash

has been promoted by certaln
-mdrvlduals" .

I.ain not now cIaImIng a UFo crashed

but Initially (as a genuine researcher

not prejudging ‘the facts)  gaye
credence to this hypothesls along with
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other suggestions. Even before the
BLUE HARE hoax was petpetrated |
had revised my findings in response to
new evidehce. At that juncture | thought
a military jet had crashed. My updated
research was in the public domain, and
lecture  contents “definitely in
Clarke/Roberts' possession courtesy of
Tim Matthews/Hepple. . The truth-of my
views or-anybody else’s ‘was..of no
interest to 'Blue Hare', except as
scmething to misrepresent

Though | did not use bogus BLUE
HARE information in my research

Roberts/Clarke have tried to. transform.

my investigation into a hoax by claiming
the entire 24/3/97 events a hoax.
BLUE HARE was from start to finish a
distraction, As they themselves put it
"This is not the place to go into the
specifics of the case. Many will be
famillar with it already and it has been
widely featured on UFQ Updates and
UFQ Magazine. Several websites have
also featured the case in depth. From
our point of view it had been
satisfactorily solved. But there are
those who wlill not see reason and
fnstead see saucers and coneplraoy
everywhera", :

Comment by Max Burns: | see a
conspiracy because Blue Hare was
ene-in pure form "more than three
beople acting against another”,
Based on the facts presented thus
far. From - the . dictionary
“Conspiracy" is "An agreement to
do wrong" "Conspire” Js " To unite
for an evil or secref purpose”.

BLUE HARE continued:

"As part of our hoaxing experiments we
decided to sse just how good a
researcher Burns and his supporters
were and devised a scenario which
would test their mvsstlgatlve powers
Burns was emailed from.an anonymous
source on 20 March 1999. As time went
on it became clear that Burns was
prepared to manipulate facts to
promote his fanciful version of the
Sheffield lncrdent"

Comment by MB:Hoaxers accusing
me of manipulating facts ~-hllarious!

BLUE. HAHE resumed

"According to Dr David Clarke's
investigation of the Howden
Moers/Sheffield: Incident. there was ho
evidence to indicate elther a Tornado
had :crashed. ot that a UFQ had been
Involved. Nor dld Dr Clarke find
evidence of a.cover-up. As far as we
could: see, Clarke's investigation was
comprehensive and exhaustive. The
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case was closed - but NOT apparently
for Max Burns" [49].

Although we pretty much knew Roberts
Clarke & Matthews/Hepple were bshing
it hard evidence was needed. In the bar
after the first day of the-annual Foriean
Times UnConvention in London 13-
14/4/02 Malcofm Robinson & Judith

_Jaafar. demanded to know why Robetts

and Clarke had beth tried to plant false
information into my research. As
Roberts had been drinking he was
loose-lipped, and did not deny he and
Clarke wera behind BLUE HARE.

Useful-as thls admission was, It was

still relatively private. The next day
Roberts and Clarke were on the panel.
Matthew Williams dropped It on his toes
in front of 500 people, asking him to
confirm or deny what was admitted the
night before. Flustered, Roberts again
conceded mvolvement in the BLUE
HARE hoax as another member of the
panel, Judith Jaafar, was present the
night before when under the influence
Roberts |t slip his and Dr Clarke's
involvement, Clarke seemed concerned
about Roberts' admission, with good
reason. Eight days Iater (22/4/02)
Roberts sent an email to Matthew
Williams via Judith Jaafar.

"I'd like to make a clear, unequivocal
statement which you can cut out and
keep to show whoaver you like - but
which I'd like you to always quote in full
ahd not out of context. [Max Burns:
Yet again, Roberts demands a
hearing in full and not to be
misquoted. Courtesies he and his
assocjates deny critics). "Dr Dave
Clarke, myself and others as yet
unnamed were behmd the Blue Hare
hoax (Tim Matthéws came aiong for the
ride but wasn't:actually. 'Involved) We
are- also behjnd several other UFQ (as
yet unrevealed) hoaxes dating back 1o
the late 1980s * These have/are belng
carrfed out as: controlled experiments. to
test: - how belief spreads - how easy It
is o introduce. new motlfs into the
subject - how .competent UFQ
investigators are - how easily the media
can be manipulated Results of some of
these experiments will be made public
when the  time is right. Others,

. hecessarily so, will remaln embedded

with the subject" [50].

Matthew Williams wrote via emalil to
Graham Birdsall, editor of UFO
Magezme (UK} about this admission by
Roberts, and it's implications for
Ufologrcal research [51] He said;

‘I'do not agree with Roberts' assertion
that his 'experiment' to Introduce
disinformation [into Ufclogy] is a valid
one. We know media and researchers

can ‘sometimes b ‘foolsd by
disinfermation. Gompounding the.
problems to serious UFO research by
introducihg such information would
surely damage the credibllity of Andy
Roberts or Dr David Clarke. S¢ I am.
asking - them te ‘reveal which
disinformation have they ‘given out in
order to clear up false resgarch: which
may have been accumulated. Also | am
golng to suggest to them that they be
prepared to pay the costs of
researchers who have had thslr tlme
and money wasted",

This letter was NOT reproduced in UFO
Magazine aithough a more recent
article by Nick Pope alluded to the
admissions  without ~_.naming
Roberts/Clarke [52]. All Is not iost for
UFO . Magazine how_ever After
publication in NFB | will give UFO
magazine the chance to reproduce this
article in full.

After the Clarke/Roberts admission. of
involvement in the BLUE HARE
attempted hoax, why just own up to the
one? UTNW Chapter 7 analyses the
Alex Birch Photograph. In 1962 a
supposed UFO photograph was taken
by Birch. It was viewed at the time by
the MOD. Many considered it the real
deal. Towards the end of the last
mrllennlum Birch changed his position
and now claimed he had 'hoaxed!' the
photo when a small boy. Further down
the line Birch reverted back to say it
was a real picture and.had only claimed
to hoax it to make it the entlre: story

leave his life once and for all Robertg

wrote of this "the new c[alms caused

,conslderable consternehon .among
UFO researchers, many,, open[y hostile

to. the case, and felt that Alex 'a self
ceohfossed hoaxer' gould hot be trusted
in the light of his earller admissions™
(UTNW p.134), What Roberts says of
Birch applies equally to hrmsslf and ¢o
author Dr Clarke at léast, .though
posslbly not to Jenny Rangles, who
seems a genuine Ufologlst. | askod
Roberts whether Randles was. involved
in any of his hoaxes, and he. replled in
the hegative. Yet until we know who all
his co-hoaxers are, any close
associates of Roberts Clarke. & Hepple
must remain suspect. As Clarke
Roberts and company are obviously
NOT acting as UFO researchers it is
legitimate to ask what their agenda
really is, and on‘whose behalf? B

"By their own admission, they have
intentionally: blurred the. line:betwean
reality and fantasy asking at various

- time for both to be accepted as truth

(UTNW p.143).  Exactly.
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Interestingly, in our emall exchanges
Roberts, a hoaxer & serial planter of
disinformaticn -in Ufology since the-late
80's wanted o 'confirm the facts' with
me. As Roberts himself said conceming
Alex Birch "a self confessed 'hoaxer'
could not be trusted in. the light of -his
earlier admissions” (UTNW: p.134).
Ufology must not ighore this sltuation.
Nat only do we want to. know- what
Roberts Clarke & their co-conspirators
have been up to, we need {0 see
relevant. documentad evidence. In the
meantime, all we can do is not believe
anything they say about Ufology unless

corroborated by genulpe researchers:
When | sought answers. from- Raobarts on.
these matters, he was typloally snssting
stating of his hoax 'experiments’ "now
the game is obviously to.say we've: just
made it up recently...] have no intention
of releasing information on-any.past,
current or future alleged experiments'

 [53].This statement even contradicts

Roberts previous post a couple of
weeks. earlier claiming "results. of some
of these experiments will be made
public when the time is right. Others,
necessarily so, will remain embedded
with the subject" [54].. Such playground

Insults and: evaslons are charactetistlc
of. Ftoberts-»and too socret state
'psyops’.-His and. Clarke's hoaxes are
not, however, . characteristic of genuine
UFO research: ...

On the basis of what has been revealed,
will Jenny: Randles. now write no- more
books: with.- Roberts? ‘Will Clarke
distance himself and act accordingly?
Will- Roberts press the.button to self-
gject. from' the. suppesedly ethical
Independent UFO. Network {IUN}? If not,
why not?? Or have you already worked
it out... .

STAGE 8: HYPOCRITICALLY ATTACKING THE INDEPENDENCE OF OTHERS ]

C =y larke, Roberts & Randles wrote
( in the iniroduction to 'The UFOs
! That Never Were' "What can we
do to reassure the reader that we are
not some puppet of the intelligence
community" (UTNW p.12). What
indeed? BLUE HARE put It thus.
“Ufologist Max Burns had become
unhealthily obsessed with the Sheffield
Incident. Despite having no evidence
for these allegations Burns further
theorised the crash had been covered
up by the Government who had also
initiated. a 'dirty tricks campaign’ against
Burns and others. To add idiocy to
stupidity Burns also eﬁeged that some
British Ufologlsts were undercover
secrot agents actmg as part of the
cover-up” [85]; I'hope that you the
readers ¢an now Judge these I|es
against the facte ’

A Joint Clarke: Ftoberts lefter provides
useful ingight Into their hypoonsy and

-double-standards. Nick Pope, well

known within Ufology as the ex MOD
UFOQ desk man, is author of books on

the sub]ect and now works In Wh|teha|| :

media relations. Clarke and Roberts
were not happy with Pope's review of
their book 'Out of the Shadows' and in
the letters page of August 2002 UFO
Magazine wrote.

"If Nick is choosing to invoke OSA
(Officlal Secrets Act) as a reason why
information we have been given is
Invalld, we would suggest pecple
immediately stop buying-his books for
the simple reason that by his own
argument nothing he says should be
taken seriously because he remains
bouhd by the OSA. All his writings and
lactures therefore count for nothing and
may actually be regarded as
disinformation because by his own
admlsslon he ‘knows yet cannot teII" '

Yet another ‘case of projeoting their
actions onto othets, Sure- Nick is due to

his fulk ime employment still bound by

the O8A, anything in his books has to
be cleared by the government first. Yeét
he'is open about that and not 'Standing
Ih The Shadows' as Clarke dnd Roberts
are. We have already seen Clarke's

hypocrisy, quoting favo_urabty ‘emails
from Pope in 'UFQs That Never Were'
against my interprefation of the
Sheffield case (UTNW p.42). No hint
there Pope peddles disinformation.

Consider also these UTNW quotes:

"We are willing to debate any case in
this book in a friendly and civilised
fashion" {p.13). We know what that
means.,  The Inside back cover
describes Dr David Clarke as "a
journalist -and writer who -has
established a wunique working
relationship with the Ministry of
Defence on varlous investigations®. At
‘what moral price? My personal
favourite: "Why wouild anyene create
such- a:web of deceit around
themsglves -for no - diseernible
“teagon?" (p. 142) Why mdeed’?

One answer Is that if everybody
accuses sach other-of being. state-
compromised, those who genuinely
are get off the hook:” How fortunate
for Roberts and Clarke..

IN CONCLUSION

¢ Javing outlined In sequence key
g aspocts of the modus operandi
| used by disinformatlon expeérts

within Ufology, some key points and
reflections:

A: Roberts and Clarke by thelr
own admission are two members
of a group placing disinformation
into Ufology since the late 80s,
now spanning three decades..

B: They tried to place
disinformation into my research
to discredit.me and my Sheffield
investlgatlon

C It has been shown they are
Iess than honest '

D: They use Intelllgence service
style tactics to suppress opinion
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‘and control Ufology and the
Ufological debate, .

'E: Roberts is a convicted drug
supplier & still uses drugs by
his own admission

F: Roberts and Clarke are not
genuine Ufologists, even
sceptical ones, but- somethmg
else entiraly. '

Many issues are raised by the actions
of the-Roberts/Clarke cabal. "One of
the most important-relates to thelr
fabricating documents data and
incidents. A useful contribution with-
ragard to the hoaxing sliuation In UK
and global Ufology has come from the
respected editor of UFO Magazine_
Brazil, AJ Gevaerd ' On UFO
Updates he wrote

"l belleve that UFQ researohers should
have thelr aotiwhes in inveettgating the
phenomena and all set, of its variations
but they should also be ready and
prepared to expose hoaxes and
hoaxers as part of such activities,
Here in ‘Brazil many researchers have
divided thelr time between UFO
investigations .and exposing hoaxes
and perpetrators. Hoaxes are a cancer
In Ufo[ogy

Gevaerd's oonoluslon based on his
extensive twenty year history within
Ufologlcal research should not be
taken llghtly ' ’

"Some mllitary, government and
teligious obscure powers.'are the only
ones. fo-benefit from hoaxes, besides
the perpetrators themselves:. This-is
why | believe that hoaxers must. be
tirglessly exposed. Doesnnt matter what
the cost 18" (56], S
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It is hoped that editors of UFO and
paranormal magazines will reflect on

these wise words, and expose Roberts.

and Clarke as serial planters of
disinformation spanning three decades
and will cease to publish articles by
them. Hopefully after being apprised of
facts In this article editors will act
accordingly and not give copy space to
The Usual Suspects.

Genuine researchers would not pollute
the research field, distort facts, make
allegations about people they know to
be untrue, and generally cause havoc
for legitimate research over many
years. ‘| hope you the reader will look
at the facts and draw your own

conclusions. The key question was well
put by one Ufologist four years ago,
and still stands, "It's been amazing to
seo a group of UFQ researchers
actually ganging up on yoursalf, for the
sole purpose of disproving this case,
Many people have asked me the

question why a gahg of UFO

researchers have made it their job to do
what the Government do best' [87].
Roberts and Clarke canndt say the data
is not factual: they will elther say
nothing and go quiet for a Iong time
pretty much like their friand Agent

Heppla/Tim Matthews did when At War

With The Universe came ‘out. Or they

will go on the offensive. | say let them

explain themselves in ful regardi'ng- the

[

vory disturbing current situation they,

have helped creats in UK Ufology. |
know they. will try and confuse the Issue
with as many side questions as they
and their allies can manufacture.
Nonetheless, | hope this ‘article
provides insights into real Ufolagy-and
the war currently taklng place for
Utology's sout

At least | am not standing ‘in the
shadows, like the Usual Suspects But
then | have nothing to hlde

(c) Max Butns 2003

maxburns @ ufon.org

If you would like an itemised list of yet more Clarke Iheonsistencles about the 1957 Sheffield Incident or more nformation
about the true facts conderning this incident, send a S.A.E. to the NFB BM Box with 4 first class stamps. Indeed, you could do
little better than purchase the 'Sheffield Incident’ video (runntng tirne 2hn 15m|nutes) for £11.00 inc p&p from the NFB address
cheques/postal orders payable fo Max Burns,
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12) some aspects of that meetrng were
mentioned ih my UFO Updates piece
13/7/99,

13) private emarl David Clarke to

BUFORA coungil 9/7/99. :

14) Interview of Caroline Hogg RAF
Coningsby 3/9/01,

15) Burns phone conversation with J
Dagenhart 5/5/98,

16) David Clarke 'Howden. Moors
incident' Pufori- website,

17) UFO Updates 28/6/99 :

18) Roy Hale 2/7/99 UFC Updates

19) Rebecca Jackson UFQ Updates
5/7/99 :

20) 'UTNW' p.42 .

21) Sheffield Star 26/3/97 .
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22): AAIB. bulletin- 10/23 (Crvil Avlatlon
Authority). - :

23) UTNW:p.37.

24)Sheffield Star 25/3/97.

25) The Armcharr Ufologrsr (Magonia

website).

- 26) UFO Updates 13/7/99.

27) UFQ Updates 27/6/98.
28) pnvate letter to author September
2002, :

29) Max Bums: “The Sheffueld Inordent'. ‘

www.visltations.com.

30).conflrmed. by - Roberts on UFO':

Updates 13/7/99. :
31) amail: Roberts: te Burns 29/7/02

32) Spenborough Guardfan & Herald»:

27/8/76.

33) Spenporough Guaro’ran & Herald

24/9/78." -

34) Spenborough Guaro'ran & Herald
24/9/786.

35) email Roberts to Burns 30/7/02
36) email Roberts to Burns 30/7/02.
37) personal communication from
Steve Gamble].

38) Private post Jaafar to Burns
18/03/03.

39) Andy Roberts UFO Updates
2/5/98

40) Roberts UFO Updates 13/7/99,
41) David Clarke UFO Updates
30/6/98.

42).small Robetts to Burns 30/7/02.
43) email Burns to Randles 27/8/02.
44) Matthew Willlams UFO Updates
28/6/99.

45) email circulated by Malcolm
Robinson 8/11/01. '

48) Andy Boberts UFO Updates
21/6/99.

47y UFO Update310/7/99 _

48) Andy . Ftoberts UFO Updates
13/7/99

49) -BLUE HAFtE UFO Updates
20/6/99.

50) Private- post:Ftoberts To I\/Iatthew.

Williams: 22/4/02;

51) 23/4/02 Graham: Bitdsall | passed
away on 1oth. September 2003 . . -,

§2) - UFO Magazine Noventber/
December; 2002 : :
53) emaill Roberts to Burns 6/5/02

B4) Private post Ftoberts te Matthew_

Williams.22/4/02.. ‘

55).BLUE HARE UFO Updates 20/6/99
56) AJ Gevaerd UFO Updates 7/5/02.
57) Roy Hale UFO Updates-14/2/99.

= ]
If you liked the above, you'll absolitely

~ love the classic 136 page booklet

'AT WAR WITH THE UNIVERSE: How
& Why Nazi thug/State Asset Tim
Hepple/Matthews infiltrated Ufology'
LARRY O'HARA & STEVE BOOTH

" (only £5.00: see back caver for
. ardeting detalls)

It contains all you need to know
about this inhtriguing phenomenon of
Ufology. Anybody who matters In
Ufology is In thefe:Pope, Randles,
Burns, Willlams, Redfern, Lushman,
McClure, Victorian, BUFORA, UFOIN

plus Silverbug & many hoaxes/

sightings. The British X Files. :
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PUBLICATION SALES LIST: WINTER 2003-4 .-,

' A.Lie'.'_I'o_oFar:Searchlight Hepple & The Left (Mina/1993)

- At War With The Truth;The True Story of Searchlight Agent Tim I-Iebpl'e {1993).
Turning Up The Heat:MIS After The Cold War (Phoenix/1994)
Searchlight for Beginners (Phoenix/1996)

‘Biblés Business Cards & J ackboots (on the NF/1990) (3 pages) }
‘Election Result Creates Crisis for NIF (Tribune/1992) (2 pages) }
The Far Right & The European Debate (Green Party/1994) (2 pages) }
Far Right Fall Out (Labour Briefing/1995) (L page) }
,Brltlsh Fascism The Persistence of Anti-Semitism (Return/1990) (9 pages)
“Our Spiritual Malaise (on NF & anti-semitism) (Return/1990) - (4 pages)
The. State The Media and Animal Rights (Head/1996) (6 pages) }
“The Enemy Within? (on MI5/SB & anti-roads movement/1996) (2 pages) }
-David Icke:Time For The Hard Truth (Greenlme/l995) (3 pagesy
Review of Leeds BNP ‘Whlte Lies’ (Green Anarchist/1995) (3 pages)
Stewart Home & his fascnst friends (selected documents on) {13 pages)

- Labour Brlefing debate on~Searchllght 1991-2 (me & others) (5 pages)

) Searchlight Fiction Pulped (demolition of January 1997 attack) (18 pages)
Combat 18 & The Dublin Riot Revisited (Animal Z/Qctobe'r 1997). (5 pages)
Gagged--background to the GANDALF case (The Law/July 1998) (2 pages)

Issue 1. Notes From The Borderland, about the International Third Position,
Ku Klux Klan, British National Socialist Party, GANDALF prosecution

Issue 2 Notes From the Borderlgnd: David Shayler, Karl Marx and the secret
state, Mind Disturbance, dodgy de%‘lings in West Yorkshire, LM/the RCP -&c’'

Issue 3 Notes From the Borderland: bomber David Copeland, Donal Macintyre,
Ken Livingstone sussed, May Day 2000 & the media,Tony Cliff's "Last Testament'

"Issue 4 Notes From the Borderland: fascism, the secret state & anti-EU struggle,
WRP history, Guardian/Observer sorted, CPGB spook Betitaney/Malkin/Bernal,
May Day 2001, British: National Party Strategy, ITP Charity Scam update

NFB Pampbhlet 1 : At War With The Universe : the British X Files--How & Whj
Nazi Thug and State Asset Tim Hepple/Matthews has infiltrated Ufology

At War With the Universe plus two issue subscription to NFB plus issues 1/2/3/4
At War With the Universe plus two issue sub, to NFB (issues 6/7 unless:stated)
At War With the Universe plus back issues of NFB (issues 1/2/3/4)

Copies of NFB leaflets -- May D‘ay 2001, Statewatch Conference 2001,Shayler

i ***************************$************&*******************';

-£1.50 including postage
£2.00 inclﬁding postage
£5.00 including postage
£2,5¢ including postage

all four together
£1.00p inciuding
postage.

both together at
£1.50 including postage

both together at
£1.00p including postage

60p including postage
60p including postage
£1.30 including postage
70p including postage
£1.60 including postage
70p including postage
40p including postage

£2.50 including postage
£2.50 including postage

£3.00 including postage

£3.00 including postage

£5.00 including postage:

£19.00 including postage
£11.00 including postage
£13.00 including postage

£1.00 including postage

R
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SUBSCRIPTION TO NOTES FROM THE BORDERLAND (2 issués)
from issue 6 on at the ridiculously low price of £7.00 including postage

[TO ORDER PHOTOCOPY THIS PAGE AND TICK OR CIRCLE ITEMS REQUIRED]

for all the above, cheques/postal orders payable to Larry O’Hara at the following address

LARRY O’HARA BM BOX 4769 LONDON WCIN SXX_ ENGLAND
for European sales, add 15% to total, payment in Sterling cheque/IMO or Euro/US § bills only
for US and Canada, add 20% to total, payment.in Sterling cheque/IMO or US$/Euro bills only

ISBN 0-9537434-3-8



